Houstonfirst.
MINUTES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
March 25, 2021 — 3:00 P.M.
Live Video and Audio Conference Meeting

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Houston First Corporation (the “Corporation” or “HFC’), a
Texas local corporation created and organized by the City of Houston as a local government
corporation pursuant to TEX. TRANSP. CODE ANN. 8431.101 et seq. and TEX LOC. GOV'T.
CODE ANN. 8394.001 et seq., held a meeting via Live Video and Audio Conference on
Thursday, March 25, 2021, commencing at 3:00 p.m.

In accordance with the modified Texas Open Meetings Act provisions announced by Texas
Governor Greg Abbott on March 16, 2020, this Agenda was posted for public information, at all
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting online at
https://www.houstonfirst.com.

The Chairman called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m. and a quorum of Board Members
was established with the following members present virtually: David Mincberg (Chair),
Desrye Morgan (Vice-Chair), Sofia Adrogué, Nicki Keenan, Reginald Martin, Alex
Brennan-Martin, Paul Puente, Bobby Singh, Gerald Womack, and Council Member David
Robinson, Ex-Officio. Jay Zeidman was present by telephonic conference call.

Public Comments. None.

Review and approval of minutes from prior meeting.

General Counsel, Lisa Hargrove, informed the Board that a correction was made to
Section 3 of the February 25, 2021 minutes and that the corrected minutes had been
circulated to all Board Members prior to the start of the meeting.

Following a motion duly seconded, the amended meeting minutes of February 25, 2021
were approved.

Council Member Dave Martin and Ryan Martin were not present for the vote, but later
joined the meeting.

Presentations and Reports.

A. Houston First Chairman Report. Prior to the Chairman’s report, he asked Council
Member David Robinson to provide an update regarding matters at the City of
Houston (City).

Council Member Robinson announced that the City passed a right-of-way
ordinance to address the use of scooters in the Convention District. He also


https://www.houstonfirst.com/

Houstonfirst.

informed the Board that Mayor Sylvester Turner continues to seek funds lost during
the winter storm and is preparing for the federal funds that will be issued to the City
from the American Rescue Plan Act.

The Chairman announced that Mayor Pro-Tem, Council Member Dave Martin,
joined the meeting and allowed him to address the Board.

Council Member Martin informed the Board that he testified before the House
Committee of Urban Affairs in opposition of H.B. 2087, which mandates arbitration
for the Houston Fire Department. He explained that he is trying to get the business
community involved to keep the bill from being passed.

The Chairman then proceeded with his report. He announced that the Winter
Storm Employee Appreciation event was a great success and thanked Bobby
Singh for the suggestion to host an in-person event. He noted that Mayor Sylvester
Turner and Acting President & CEO, Michael Heckman, spoke at the reception.

The Chairman announced that HFC will ask for a portion of the $616 million
received by the City under the American Rescue Plan Act. Council Member David
Robinson stated that he believed that the funds received are to be split between
the City and Harris County and should be used over the course of two fiscal years.
Council Member Martin clarified that Harris County will receive $921 million and
the City will receive $616 million over two years.

The Chairman stated that HFC will need funds to replace lost revenues, but he
believes that HFC is entering a new phase given the increase in economic activity
in Houston. Additionally, he said, as individuals continue to get vaccinated, many
are anxious to travel domestically. He then allowed Board Members to have further
discussion.

Nicki Keenan provided information on Landry’s Inc. She explained that when
Texas re-opened at 100% capacity, hotels in Galveston experienced record-
breaking numbers over spring break. Hotels in the downtown area also saw a
strong increase in hotel occupancy as did the Post Oak Hotel, she said, which also
experienced record-breaking numbers.

Paul Puente commented that there has been an increase in skilled workers
returning to work in the construction industry.

Ryan Martin stated that there are increases in travel, hotel occupancy, and outdoor
events through year-end and the latter half of the year appears normal from a
business prospective. He commended management for having the foresight to
develop a strategy when business improved.

Nicki Keenan stated that she would be remiss if she did not address the challenge
now faced by the hospitality industry due to a shortage of human capital.



Houstonfirst.

Gerald Womack stated that the real estate industry is booming. He said he
attended a ground-breaking ceremony with the Harris County Housing Authority
that will build 250 units in north Houston and explained that a number of other
developments with affordable housing are currently being built.

Bobby Singh thanked the Chairman and Michael Heckman for hosting the
employee reception. He also commended management for enforcing proper safety
protocols. Mr. Singh stated that he attended the API prayer vigil at Discovery
Green on Saturday evening and noticed the amount of activity during the volleyball
tournament at the George R. Brown Convention Center (GRB) and at the
restaurants located along the Avenida. He further explained that as the GRB
continues to host large events safely, it will serve as a signal to others that Houston
can host live events again.

The Chairman then concluded his report. He thanked Mr. Heckman for doing an
exceptional job of keeping him informed and announced that he would like to begin
hosting in-person meetings starting in April and will submit a survey to Board
Members. The Chairman also recognized Dee Dee Chavez, Chief of Staff to Vice
Mayor Pro-Tem Martha Castex-Tatum, for joining the meeting.

. HEC Acting President & CEO Report. Michael Heckman directed the attention of
the Board to an image of the Zero Hunger Mural created by artist Dragon76 that is
located on the west side of the combined Homewood Suites and Hampton Inn
Hotels in downtown Houston. At 13,000 square feet, he noted, the mural is now
Houston’s largest and was created to raise awareness of hunger around the world.

Mr. Heckman announced that he attended the U.S. Travel Association Board
Meeting in Tampa, Florida. The in-person event, he said, included many industry
leaders meeting for the first time since the COVID-19 pandemic began. He also
participated in the Destination CEO Roundtable, and was pleased to hear that
many of the challenges faced in other cities do not exist in Houston.

He then provided a recovery strategy update and explained how those strategies
are being implemented. Mr. Heckman announced that HFC has partnered with
Airbnb and is working to highlight different parts of the community. He then
introduced HFC Vice President of Market Strategy, Cindy Decker, to discuss
market trends in hotel occupancy.

Ms. Decker reported that the Houston market is now trending well above the top
25 cities in the U.S. market for hotel occupancy and currently exceeds hotel
occupancy numbers in 2019. She said hotel rates remain lower than usual, but the
Houston hotel market continues to recover faster than the U.S. in hotel occupancy
and supply. Ms. Decker said she also anticipates an increase in demand through
the summer.

Mr. Heckman then continued with his report and confirmed that 18 city-wide events
remain on the calendar and 15 planning site visits will take place this year. Senior



Houstonfirst.

Vice President of Sales and Client Services, John Solis, explained that these visits
are very positive and signal that groups are serious about hosting in-person
events. Mr. Solis stated that there has also been an increase in general site
visitations. Mr. Heckman added that Houston continues to benefit from the
relocation of events previously held in other cities. He then asked Chief Marketing
Officer, Holly Clapham, to discuss digital targeting with meeting planners.

Ms. Clapham discussed the process of customer relationship management list
targeting and the integration of social media. This marketing strategy, according to
Ms. Clapham, resulted in nearly 3 million impressions and 2.6 million engagements
during a six-week marketing campaign.

Mr. Heckman stated that a family-friendly immersive consumer event will take
place at the GRB this summer and a formal announcement of the event will be
made soon. He asked Chief Operations Officer, Luther Villagomez, to discuss
other events hosted at the GRB in March.

Mr. Villagomez discussed the Cross Court Classic volleyball tournament and noted
there were over 23,000 attendees. Those in attendance, he said, followed proper
safety protocols such as social distancing and wearing masks. He added that HFC
also hosted a March Madness Watch Party on Avenida Plaza with over 900
attendees. Additionally, according to Mr. Villagomez, restaurants experienced an
increase in business and tenants are enthusiastic about the increase in activity.

Mr. Heckman announced that a UFC fight will take place at Toyota Center on May
15, 2021, which serves as further proof that Houston is open for business. He also
thanked Council Member Robinson for his work on the right-of-way ordinance. He
noted that work is also underway with the internship program funded by the
Greater Houston Convention & Visitors Bureau (GHCVB), in collaboration with
HFC. Mr. Heckman thanked GHCVB Chair, Reginald Martin, for his efforts. Mr.
Martin then expressed his enthusiasm for the summer program.

In conclusion, Mr. Heckman announced that Alfred Cervantes has been named
the Executive Director of the Houston Film Commission. He noted that Mr.
Cervantes served as Deputy Director to Rick Ferguson for over twenty years and
will report to Jorge Franz. Additionally, Mr. Heckman said Jonathan Newport will
oversee the Public Affairs Department and will report to Lisa Hargrove. Lastly, he
said that Roksan Okan-Vick and the Urban Development Department will now
report to Luther Villagomez.

Council Member Robinson congratulated Jorge Franz on being named the Vice
President of Tourism & Industry Relations.

. Financial Update. Chief Financial Officer, Frank Wilson, announced that HFC
received its second draw on a Paycheck Protection Plan (PPP) loan in the amount
of $2 million. HFC, he said, also applied for a PPP loan in the amount of $2.9
million for the Hilton Americas-Houston Hotel (Hotel). He said he is working

4



Houstonfirst.

diligently to finalize a loan with AIG that is secured by a $125 million mortgage on
the Hotel that will mature in May. Additionally, according to Mr. Wilson, the Finance
Department continues to perform aggressive forecasting with the use of new
software and will present a more detailed presentation at the April Board meeting.

Mr. Wilson then shared HFC’s diversity spend as well as HFC’s major revenues
and expenses. Year-to-date, he explained, HFC has spent approximately 32% with
diverse partners through February.

Bobby Singh stated that while HFC should be proud of the diversity award received
by the Houston Business Journal, he is offended by the lack of participation by
Asian businesses. Despite HFC’s decrease in overall spending due to COVID-19,
Mr. Singh stated that it is imperative for management to assess more ways to
engage the Asian community and he will continue to address this issue.

Gerald Womack echoed the sentiments of Mr. Singh and stated that he too is not
satisfied with the figures presented.

Paul Puente stated that he agrees with the sentiments of his fellow Board
Members, but he also understands the difficulty of getting firms to bid on contracts.

Mr. Heckman acknowledged all of the comments of the Board Members and stated
while he is very proud of the team, there is always room for improvement. He also
stated that he would be happy to meet with Mr. Singh to discuss ways to increase
engagement with the Asian business community.

Gerald Womack added that it is unacceptable for management to present poor
figures to the Board. He said HFC must do the work to get people at the table and
give them an opportunity. He also stated that it is an embarrassment to go back to
Representative Sheila Jackson Lee and Representative Al Green with the
information presented as they advocate for more federal dollars for the City.

. Leqislative Update. Vice President of Public Policy, Jonathan Newport, provided a
brief update. He explained that the federal government passed the American
Rescue Plan Act in the amount of $1.9 trillion. He further noted that, in previous
COVID relief legislation, the Shuttered Venue Operator Grant Program was
created and those venues that also received a PPP loan were ineligible, but the
American Rescue Plan Act now allows venues to qualify for funds under both
programs. According to Mr. Newport, HFC will apply for its Theater District venues.
Mr. Newport said he is also closely tracking the Hospitality and Job Commerce
Act. Finally, he noted that HFC is working closely with members of the area
delegation on community-based projects that have been earmarked and may be
included in the upcoming federal budget or the long-rumored infrastructure bill.

Mr. Newport noted that the Texas Legislative Session has 65 days remaining, but
the final days will be very busy. So far, he added, over 6,900 bills and resolutions
have been filed, which is the 3 highest number of bills in the last 17 sessions. He



Houstonfirst.

noted that HFC is tracking 380 bills that could impact HFC business or the overall
hospitality industry and, though the winter storm has dominated discussions thus
far, the focus is shifting to other issues, including the State Budget. Mr. Newport
said thatin the 2022-2023 State Budget that will soon be released for consideration
both State tourism and film incentives are fully funded.

He noted that on March 8, Jorge Franz was invited to give testimony before the
House Culture, Recreation, and Tourism Committee to discuss the challenges
facing Houston’s tourism industry as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Mr.
Newport thanked Representative Christina Morales for allowing Mr. Franz to
represent Houston’s tourism industry.

Mr. Newport explained that he is following bills regarding hotel occupancy taxes
and the State Event Trust Fund. He said that no bills have been filed to elimination
the fund and, in fact, a number of bills have been filed to add qualifying events. He
also discussed the impact that bills related to social issues have on business in
Texas and stated that he is closely monitoring bills related to transgender
participation in youth and high school sports. He concluded his update by
discussing bills related to open government that could impact the way that General
Counsel handles public information requests as well as the ability to meet virtually,
absent a declared emergency or suspension of law.

The Chairman thanked Mr. Newport for his efforts and requested that he provide
the legislative update prior to the Chairman’s report at the April and May Board
meetings. He also encouraged Mr. Newport to contact Board Members for any
additional support.

Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned at 5:02 p.m.



